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of a circle and a square with a sloping conic
floor,” recounted contractor Gabriel Peretz,
Moshe Ben-Giat's partner in the dome’s
construction; see David Kroyanker, Jerusalem
Architecture — Periods and Styles: Modern
Architecture Outside the Old City Walls,
1948-1990 (Jerusalem: Keter, 1991), p. 126
[Hebrew].
The stone building technique at the religious
library was different from the one prevalent in
Jerusalem at the time: instead of building an
inner wall at a 4 cm distance from the outer
stone wall, the inner wall here was constructed
from exposed bricks, bearing, on their outer side,
the stone facing.
8 See Y. Itto, “The University Synagogue,” Haaretz,
30 August 1957 [Hebrew].

-

walls of the external square are made of rough chiseled stone. The
additional functions, such as a religious library and a study room,
were moved to a separate stone building.”

Orientation: The synagogue complex includes a prayer hall, a library,
and a paved, unroofed courtyard in the entrance. The main building
is reached through an inner courtyard that opens toward the free-
standing column ground floor. A spiral staircase curves and rises
adjacent to the inner part of the dome, leading to the prayer hall
which seems to hover in mid-air. The round concrete floor of the hall
is cast at the level of the arches’ apex. It is supported by eight round
columns arranged at some distance (60 cm) from the dome’s
envelope, leaving a gap between the floor and the envelope, thus
introducing natural light from below into the prayer hall. The
building has one entrance, and another doorway leads to the
lavatory structure.

The furniture is of minimalist style, in keeping with the format
of the contemporary-ascetic prayer hall. The cantor's pulpit is a
modest pedestal on a marble plate supported by white metal legs.
The reading cathedra is a plain marble table. The Holy Ark stands on
a small platform that repeats the structure of the entire synagogue,
and the women’s gallery is located along the southern vault, set
apart from the main space by means of a translucent curtain.

Despite its modest dimensions, the synagogue structure has
noticeable presence. Isolation of this inward-turning building from
its surroundings contributed to the intimacy created within the
space delineated between the dome and the hall’s floor. The invisible,
ambient lighting and the sense of void reinforce the experience of
the place. “Architecture, like any other art,” Reznik quotes Niemeyer,
“is an inanimate entity throbbing with a soul.”
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The Hebrew University Synagogue,
Givat Ram Campus,
Jerusalem, 1956-57

“In my mind’s eye | saw a structure at a crossroads, a sanctuary
for the passerby.”

Commissioning body: The Hebrew University, Jerusalem
Architects: Heinz Rau, David Reznik?

Interior and furniture design: Heinz Rau, David Reznik
Construction: Ignas Olexinzer

Designation: A religious house of study, an intimate place for
worship and study, a library, and a reception area

Site area: 584 sq. m.; built-up area: 316 sg. m.

Materials: Concrete, Jerusalem stone, glass

Site: The University Synagogue — an innovative building in the
architectural terms of its time and a landmark in local architecture
— is located on a rise in the southern section of the Givat Ram
Campus in Jerusalem, adjacent to the student dormitories.

Project: Heinz Rau, commissioned by the Hebrew University to design
the building, invited David Reznik to join him. Reznik, a newcomer
from Brazil and an ex-Kibbutz member was eager to realize the
concepts of modernism that he had acquired in Oscar Niemeyer’s
office in Brazil® and willingly accepted the invitation. The idea of
introducing a dome as an independent whole structure rising from
the ground was developed during the work process in conversations
between the two architects who perceived the dome as an
architectural attribute of traditional synagogues. In the initial
sketches the dome was placed over a stone wall in which functions
such as the entrance, lavatories and library were located. Rau, an
architect of stone (sixty at the time), preferred a white dome that
would rest on stone arches. Reznik, a concrete aficionado (about
thirty at the time), wanted to avoid the blunt seam created between
the two materials by forgoing the stone. The scales were tipped in

favor of Reznik’s proposal during architect Alfred Neumann'’s visit to
their office.# The plan ultimately implemented reflects the common
denominators shared by the two architects (a modernist approach to
form and space), but also the generational gap (the approach to
the material). The synagogue at the Givat Ram Campus is a
contemporary building that converses with the architecture of the
past.

The process of conceptual encapsulation took almost a year.
According to Reznik, it was hard to persuade Rau to cast the entire
building as a single domed unit. During the first phase, the dome was
dissociated from the stone base on which it lay, and the stone
foundation was later removed from the dome, paving the way to its
“floating” by means of advanced casting technology.® The intricate
composition, consisting of a circle within a square, determined the
final shape of the dome.

The dome structure — cast, as aforesaid, using advanced
means — is lighter than might be expected. Its diameter is 18 m., and
the width of the shell ranges from 12 cm at the margins to 6 cm at
the apex, where the dome is supported by eight arches. The arched
apertures let daylight into the interior. The white color and the
arched openings generate an effect of cumulating natural light. The
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1 Reznik, quoted from a conversation with
Yaakov Malkin held in 1975 in preparation for
a chapter about Reznik (“Architectural Model:
Kiryat Chassidim, Hazor Haglilit”) in Malkin’s
book Quality of Life and Renascence of
Community (Tel Aviv: Massada, 1976) [Hebrew];
transcript of the full conversation, which goes
beyond the scope of the aforementioned chapter,
is kept in the archives at Reznik’s office.

Rau, Reznik, and Olexinzer were awarded the
1965 Rechter Prize for Architecture for the
synagogue at the Givat Ram Campus. In his
address at the award ceremony, Arthur Glickson
noted that “the excellence of a very small
building can transform it into a building of
great general significance for architecture. ...
The approach to the design on the one hand,
and its quality on the other, have, to our mind,
rendered this building an architectural manifesto
with topical significance and special meaning”;
see “1965 Rechter Prize: The University
Synagogue in Jerusalem,” Handasah ve-
Adrichalut (“Engineering and Architecture,” June
1965), p. 20 [Hebrew].

When he was a student of architecture in Brazil,
between 1944 and 1948, Reznik worked in the
office of renowned Brazilian architect, Oscar
Niemeyer.

Toward Neumann's visit — an architect and a
charismatic lecturer at the Technion — Israel
Institute of Technology, who collaborated with
architects Zvi Hecker and Eldar Sharon in the
1960s — much to Rau's dismay (who was
unhappy with the plan eventually selected, even
though he agreed to implement it), Reznik hung
the two different plans on the wall. Cracks in
the collaboration between the two architects
soon became apparent, and this was the only
complete project they ever designed together.
Construction of the above-ground “hovering”
dome, based on statistical calculations made by
engineer Olexinzer, was made possible through
the use of reinforced concrete — modern
architecture’s quintessential building material.
“The spatial dome, made in a single concrete
casting, is an elliptical-geometric combination
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Amir Center: A High-Rise for Residence
and Commerce (Supersal), Agron Street,
Jerusalem, 1958-60

“It was the first time a crane was used in Jerusalem.™

Commissioning body: Gabriel Peretz and Moshe Ben-Giat,
in collaboration with Shikun Ovdim

Architect: David Reznik

Construction: Yehuda Berger

Designation: Commerce, offices, and residential apartments
Site area: 10 dunams (2.5 acres)

Materials: Concrete, stone, stone facing

Site: The Amir Center is one of three buildings designed for a
slope east of King George Street, toward Gan Ha'atzmaut
(Independence Park). The 10 dunam (2.5 acre) plot, overlooking a
major Jerusalem junction (Paris Square), called for innovative
urban solutions. At the same time, its location in proximity to
dominant historical buildings — the conservative Heikhal Shlomo
with its emphasized dome,? the Terra Sancta building (1924-27),
the National Institutions building (1928-36) designed by
Yohanan Ratner, etc. — which extend opposite the open
landscape all the way to the Old City, introduced many obstacles
to the design process.

Reznik, a proponent of technology, simplicity and func-
tionality,® designed three residential high-rises in the complex
according to the freestanding standard for public buildings. The
buildings were to be on the margins of the site, at a considerable
distance from each other, in order to maintain maximum
transparency to the immediate and the distant surroundings.

Project: Industrial materials and advanced technologies were
used at the Amir Center, the only building constructed from the
overall plan. For the first time in Jerusalem, a 25 m high crane
weighing 11 tons, brought especially from Sweden, was used in

the construction. The balconies’ envelope was used during
construction as scaffolding to cast the upper floors, which
advanced at a rate of a story a day. The walls are pre-cast units
(cast in situ, measuring 265x90x20 cm), with stone facing, as
required in Jerusalem. A sequence of open balconies, each 1.7
meters in width, surrounds the building, lending it a light,
modular, horizontal appearance. The repetition was intended to
blur the building’s verticality and soften the sense of mass. At the
cubic base of each building, four interior courts were planned for
heating and ventilation, and an additional shaft in the center, for
the elevator and staircase.
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According to contractors Gabriel Peretz and
Moshe Ben-Giat, who were awarded the 1963
Kaplan Prize for "a decade of activity employing
efficient state-of-the-art work methods”; see
Davar weekend supplement, 15 July 1963
[Hebrew].

Heikhal Shlomo on the opposite side

of King George Street, is the seat of Israel’s
Chief Rabbinate (inaugurated in 1953; architect:
Alexander Friedman). Its administrators exerted
considerable pressure on the authorities in the
fear that the complex would overshadow the
Heikhal and block the Old City view.

Reznik believes that the suspicion with which
the new building technologies were received in
Jerusalem only contributed to his fame as an
architect; from a conversation with the writer,
December 2003.

Most of the plot was purchased at the time by
Shikun Ovdim and contractors Peretz and
Ben-Giat from Hachsharat HaYishuv (Palestine
Land Development Company). The remainder
was purchased by the Jerusalem Municipality;
see Joshua Tan-Pai, “A Commercial Center being
Erected in Jerusalem,” Haaretz, 25 March 1960
[Hebrew]; Macabee Dean, “New Commercial
Centre Rises,” The Jerusalem Post, 9 September
1960.



The natural slope of the site enabled construction of the
shopping center in the lower levels. It was constructed from
rough stone, which was juxtaposed to the concrete casts of the
residential building to generate a material combination bridging
old and new, ancient construction in the city and the
International Style. A garden was planned for the open level on
the shopping center roof. As an open space that allows free
movement and observation of the landscape, it dictated a wide
opening between the columns supporting the residential floors,
thus the common base of every two columns is planted on the
roof of the commercial levels, where from they split into a
V-shape to a height of 3.5 meters. The concrete columns in the
open space allude, in their powerful plastic presence, to the
massive pilotis widening at their top in Le Corbusier's Marseilles
Unité d’Habitation (1947-52).

Implementation was divided into three phases spanning a
period of three-four years, with a budget of 4.5 million lirot. But
the planned design encountered difficulties which mercilessly
gnawed upon it: the three top floors were canceled for fear that
they might overshadow the adjacent Heikhal Shlomo or block the
view of the Old City. This reduction in the number of floors
changed the general proportions of the building, contributing to
its foreign, deviant appearance. The plan to construct a theater in
the third building burdened the budget, determining the fate of
the entire complex. Of the three planned high-rises, only one was
eventually erected. The banister was incongruent with the plans,
and the shopping center was never completed.*

Orientation: The building consists of seven floors above the free-
standing column ground floor, intended for 28 units of
habitation: four 3-5 room apartments on each floor. The
commercial complex extends over two floors below the ground
floor, containing commercial spaces, offices, and a bank. The
open ground floor distinguishes between the functions of
commerce and residence, allowing free movement and
observation of the view.
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